Public Document Pack

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL HOUSING CABINET MEMBER MEETING

4.00PM 22 JULY 2008

COMMITTEE ROOM 1, HOVE TOWN HALL

MINUTES

Present: Councillor Caulfield (Cabinet Member)

Also in attendance: Councillor Simpson (Opposition Spokesperson)

Other Members present: Councillors Marsh, Mears and Randall

PART ONE

15. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

- 15a Declarations of Interests
- 15a.1 There were none.
- 15b Exclusion of Press and Public
- 15b.1 The Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if members of the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A, Part 5A, Section 100A(4) or 100 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).
- 15b.2 **RESOLVED** That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting.

16. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

16.1 **RESOLVED** - That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2008 be approved and signed by the Cabinet Member.

17. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS

17.1 Cabinet Member welcomed everyone to the meeting. It was noted that the meeting had followed on directly from the Housing Management Consultative meeting and the Chairman welcomed those Members and Tenant Representatives that had chosen to observe proceedings.

18. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION

18.1 **RESOLVED** – That with the exception of the items reserved (and marked with an asterisk), the recommendations and resolutions contained therein be approved and adopted without debate.

19. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

19.1 There were none.

20. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS

20.1 There were none.

21. DEPUTATIONS

21.1 There were none.

22. PETITIONS

22.1 There were none.

23. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS

23.1 There were none.

24. NOTICES OF MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL

24.1 There were none.

25. MATTERS REFERRED FOR RECONSIDERATION

25.1 There were none.

26. REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

26.1 There were none.

27. HOUSING GREEN PAPER OPTIONS STAGE 1 REPORT

27.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing concerning the council's review of options in the Government's Housing Green Paper. With the support of external financial and legal expertise from Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC) and Trowers & Hamlins (Trowers), the detailed assessment of options for meeting the council's strategic objectives and development of a proposal for the council to set up a viable Local Delivery Vehicle (LDV) that meets these objectives had been completed (for copy see minute book).

27.1 Councillor Simpson noted that the Labour Group would have preferred more time to consider some of the issues raised by the report, noting that she had a series of questions to ask. For ease of reference the questions and answers are appended at 'A'.

28. TENDER FOR A CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF A SECURITY WHEEL CLAMPING SERVICE WITHIN BRIGHTON & HOVE

- 28.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of Director of Adult Social Care & Housing that requested approval of a request to tender for a contract to provide a secure clamping service for Housing Revenue Account (HRA) managed car parking and garage areas let to licence holders. Permission was also sought that other directorates who would benefit from clamping on their land, for example office car parks, could use the service (for copy see minute book).
- 28.2 **RESOLVED** (1) That the Housing Cabinet Member approve the tendering for a Security Wheel Clamping Service within Brighton & Hove. This will enable these services to commence on 31 January 2009.
 - (2) That the comments as made by the Housing Management Consultative Committee be noted.

29. HOUSING STRATEGY 2008-2013: HEALTHY HOMES, HEALTHY LIVES, HEALTHY CITY

The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing concerning the development of a draft Housing Strategy and draft specialist housing strategies relating to Older People, the city's BME (Black and Minority Ethnic) communities and the city's LGBT (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans) communities. Development of these strategies began in 2007 to replace the previous Strategy that was developed in 2001 and updated in 2004 (for copy see minute book).

- 29.1 **RESOLVED** (1) That the progress on the development of the city-wide Housing Strategy 2008–2013 and the consultation undertaken to date, be noted.
 - (2) That the engagement of the Housing Management Consultative Committee and tenant representatives in detailed consultation / review of the draft Housing Strategy, Older People's Housing Strategy, BME Housing Strategy and LGBT Housing Strategy, be noted.

30. HOUSING MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT

- 30.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of Director of Adult Social Care & Housing concerning the attainment of performance targets set by members and/or Cabinet and reporting on general policy initiatives underway to improve performance within Housing Management responsibilities (for copy see minute book).
- 30.2 **RESOLVED** That the report be noted.

31. EXTERNAL ENVELOPE REPAIRS TO SOMERSET & WILTSHIRE HOUSE 2008

- The Cabinet Member considered a report of Director of Adult Social Care & Housing requesting delegated authority to award a contract for repairs to the external envelope of Somerset & Wiltshire House (for copy see minute book).
- 31.2 **RESOLVED** That the Cabinet Member for Housing authorise that the Director of Adult Social Care & Housing be given delegated powers to approve the award of the contract for external envelope repairs to Somerset & Wiltshire House, following financial due diligence and cost comparisons of the tenders offered under mini competition from contractors on the LHC external envelope repairs framework, following consultation with the Cabinet member for housing.

The meeting concluded at 5.45pn	n	
Signed		Chair
Dated this	day of	

Minute Item 27

Appendix A to Housing CMM Minutes 22 July

Questions posed by Councillor Simpson

Question: Which tenants were consulted with as regards to these proposals?

Answer: Widespread consultation with tenant representatives and all council tenants and leaseholders has been or will be undertaken before Cabinet decides whether to establish a Local Delivery Vehicle (LDV).

The tenant and leaseholder representatives at Housing Management Sub-Committee (HMCC) have fully supported the development of the proposals. They are elected from Area Housing Management Panels and citywide tenants' groups and play a key role in the council's tenant participation and consultation arrangements. Tenant representatives supported the proposal to review Housing Green Paper options, agreed by HMCC at its meeting on 11 March 2008, which led to the proposal to set up an LDV. Tenant representatives' indicative vote at HMCC on 22 July was also unanimously in favour of proceeding to the development and finalisation phases of Stage 2 of the review. And they endorsed the proposed consultation arrangements with tenant and leaseholder representatives before the Cabinet takes any final decision to establish an LDV.

Now that the LDV proposals are being further developed, further information will be provided to tenants via a publication of *Homing In.* Special consultation meetings are also planned for tenants and leaseholders in September. The LDV proposal will be reported to Housing Management Consultative Committee on 23 September, as further consultation with tenants and their representatives before the report goes to Cabinet.

Q: Why 499 properties?

A: Following tenants' "No" vote to large scale stock transfer in February 2007, the council is committed to retaining the stock and to its tenants remaining with the council. The LDV proposal involves leasing a relatively small number of vacant properties in need of investment to the LDV, so they can be used to raise investment both to refurbish them and improve council homes. A maximum of 499 properties over a five year period has been set because under current legislation, if the council wished to lease more than 499 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) dwellings to any body within a five year period, it would first have to be included by the Secretary of State in a disposals programme. 499 properties would amount to only 4% of the stock.

Q: Will the council be setting up more LDVs to lease over further tranches of homes?

A: There are no plans to set up further LDVs or lease over further tranches of homes. The financial modelling which has been undertaken to establish the viability of an LDV and the impact on the council is based only on leasing 499 properties.

Q: What sort of properties will be transferred and how will they be selected?

A: As part of asset management planning, an initial tranche of 106 HRA properties currently used for temporary accommodation has been identified as suitable for leasing to the LDV. The Temporary Accommodation units are scattered street properties owned by the HRA, many having shared facilities and high maintenance and repair requirements. They are currently occupied by non-secure tenants, whose tenancy lasts around six months on average, and have a high turnover.

For leasing of future empty properties to the LDV, up to the limit of 499 over five years, it is proposed that we set criteria based on negative Net Present Value to the HRA and requirement for reinvestment.

Q: Are we keeping properties vacant in order to transfer them?

A: No properties are being kept empty for the purposes of the LDV.

Q: Will it be a private organisation running this asset backed LDV?

A: If the council agrees to set up the LDV, it will be a separate legal entity established by the council specifically for this project. It will be not-for-profit and may be a charity.

Q: The figure for the capital receipt is quite high if the properties also need a lot of investment. How robust are the projected figures?

A: The financial model has been produced in line with best practice. The figures for the capital receipt are prudent and will be subject to further work as the proposal is further developed.

Q: How would the capital receipts be paid to the council, up front or over a period of years?

A: The lease premiums would be paid as and when properties are leased to the LDV.

Q: What will the LDV charge in rents so as to pay back the £92k per property, plus refurbishments?

A: Rent levels used for financial modelling are prudent, based on existing Housing Benefit levels for the client groups for whom the LDV would provide accommodation.

Q: What could the effect of rising inflation have on these proposals?

A: Inflation has been modelled in the financial modelling undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers which indicates the financial viability of the project.

Q: What is meant by regeneration projects; will all the money be for council housing?

A: If the proposal goes ahead, the council proposes to use all of the capital receipts from leasing properties on improvements to existing HRA stock.

The receipts can be exempt from the government's pooling regime if they are to be used for affordable housing or for regeneration projects, as defined in the Capital Finance Regulations 2003. Improving existing council homes is included within the definition of affordable housing in the regulations.

Q: The 125 year leases will have a break clause at 30 years – presumably for either party to finish the arrangement. The debt at that time would be £40 million. What effect would that have on the council at that time?

A: This would be a council break clause so, when choosing whether to exercise the break, the council would have to take the effects into account at that time.

Q: What will the criteria of the new LDV be for accepting tenants?

A: There would be a 100% nominations agreement between the council and the LDV, so the council would nominate all the tenants of the LDV. The proposal is that the LDV would provide housing for homeless households and other clients for whom the council has a duty to provide housing, from the Children and Young People's Trust, Learning Disabilities and Adult Social Care.

Q: What will be the new rent?

A: See above. Rents would be within Housing Benefit levels already used when providing accommodation for the client groups in question.

Q: What happens to tenants evicted by the LDV – will they be allowed back into LDV leased properties – if not where will they go?

A: Controls would be put in place by the council in the lease and nominations agreement governing issues such as eviction. Any tenants evicted by the LDV would be treated in the same way as existing clients in the same situation.

Q: Will the LDV have their own criteria in relation to who they accept to be housed by them? If so there would potentially more delay in getting a transfer with increased uncertainty.

A: The nominations agreement would give the council the right to nominate 100% of tenants. The nomination process from the council is unlikely to result in any significant delays.

Q: Households wanting to transfer to an empty property will have to go into a leased (or remortgaged) property. This will delay the amount of available properties coming through as legal paperwork relating to the leasing arrangement will have to be completed first.

A: No. Existing arrangements for council tenants would not change. The empty properties leased to the LDV would be only a small proportion of council homes becoming empty and available for reletting over a five year period. They would represent only 4% of the stock and there would be no net loss of homes due to the development programme, which has delivered an average of 250 new homes per year.

Q: No mention of long-term availability of the LDV or what happens to homes if LDV goes bust.

A: The LDV would have long term business planning with the security of a 125 year lease. The council would retain freehold ownership of the properties.

Q: What is the cost of setting up the LDV and is it budgeted for?

A: The costs will depend on the outcome of the Stage 2 review during which the proposals are being developed.